UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR IMMIGRATION REVIEW
OFFICE OF THE CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING OFFICER

)
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )
)
COMPLAINANT, )
)

v, ) 8 U.S.C. § 1324b PROCEEDING

: ‘ ) OCAHO CASE NO. :
WASHINGTON POTATO COMPANY, )
and )
PASCO PROCESSING, LLC, )
| )
RESPONDENTS. )-
‘ )

- COMPLAINT

Complainant, the United States of Amerit;ta, alleges as follows:
1. This action is brought on behaﬁ of the United Stateé by the Office of Special Coﬁnsel for
| hlnnigra’ﬁion~Related Unfair Employment Practices (“Office of Special Comlsel”) fo
enforce the provision. of the Immigration and Nationality Act (“INA”) that'prohibﬁs
workplace discrimination, 8 U.S.C. § 1324b,

2. Pasco Processing, LLC (“Pasco™), ﬁnder the direction and control of the Washington
Potato Company t“WPC”) (hereinafter jointly ideﬁtiﬁed as *;Respo11d611ts”), engaged in a
patiern or practic_c of discrimination against worl&a:uthoriied, non-t,8, citizens by
requesting that they produce speoiﬁé docmnénts to establish their employment eligibility

because of their citizenship status, in violation of 8 U.S.C. § 1324b(a)(6).
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JURISDICTION
Pursuant to 8 U.S.C. §§ 1324&3‘(0)(2) and (d)(1), Complainant is authorized to conduct
i1ivestigati0ns of, and, if warranted, prosecute immigration-related unfair employment
practices in violation of 8 U.S.C. § 1324b.
WPC, a Washington corporation whose principal place of business and corporate
headquarters is located at 1900 West 1% Avenue, Warden, Washington 98857, isa
processor of frozen fruit and vegetable products,
Pasco, a Washington limited liability corporation whose principal place of business is
located at 5815 Industrial Way, Pasco, Washington 99301, is a frozen vegetable and
potato processing facility. |
Since 2008, WPC has managed and operated Pasco under a joint venture agrecment with
the I.R. Simplot Company (“Simplot"’), a corporation based in Boise, Idaho.
Under the joiﬁt venture agreement between Simplot and WPC, WPC is responsible for
overseeing the management, administration and daily dperations of Pasco, including but
not limited to generating workplace policies for Pasco, and having oversight of Pasco’s
personnel administration and employment verification éolicies and practices.
WPC is a person or entity under 8 U.S.C. § 1324b(a)(6); 8 U.S.C. § 1101(b)(3); and 8
CFR.§ 274a. 1(b), that employed more than three employees at all times during the
period of the i1111nigrétio11—1“elated unfair employiment practices described below. 7
Pﬁ.sco is a person or entity under 8 U,8.C. § 1324b(a)(6); 8 U.8.C. § 1101{b)(3); and 8
CFR. §274a.1(b), thaf employed more than three employees at all times during the
period of the immigration-related unfair employment practices described below.
On December 3, 2014, Complainant notified WPC in wrii—:ing that it had initiatéd an

investigation under 8 U.8.C, §§ 1324b(c}2) and (d)(1) to determine whether WPC
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engages in or had engaged in unfair employment practices based on citizenship status in

~ violation 61 8 U.8.C. § 1324b, On December 18, 2014, WPC responded through counsel

and indicated that Pasco was “[{]he only unit or hiring location of Wéshington Potato
C_ompany and its affiliates and subsidiaries that is enrolled in the E-Verify program,” a.i“l(i,
as a result, responded to the Complainant’s investigatory i11q111ﬁes on behalf of Pasco,
The Office of the Chief Administrative Hearing Officer’s jurisdiction is itrvoked pursuant
to 8 U.8.C. § 1324b(e)(1).

BACKGROUND
In 1986, Congress amended the Immi gration and Nationality Act to requite employers fo
reﬁew documentation from each new employee to ensure that the employee is eligible to
work in the United States. 8 U.S.C. § 1324a(b). |
Having created an employment eligibility verification requirement through 8 U.S.C. § |
1324a(b), Congress also amended the INA to protéct work-authorized individuals from
empioyment discrimination based on citizenship statug and national orirg.in.
Consistent with Congress’ purpose in 1986 that the employment eligibility verification
process should apply equally to all work-authorized individuals, the INA’s anti-
disqfimination prnvisbn prohibits ;J,-person or entity from subjecting individuals to
citizehshi_p and national origin status discrimination in, among other things, employment
eligibility verification. 8 U.B.C. § 1324b(a)(1), (2)(6).

During the initial employment eligibility verification process, new. employees have a

choice to present documentation establishing both identity and employment authorization

(List A document), or & combination of an identity document (List B document) and an
employment authorization document (List C document), U.S, Citizenship and

Immigration Services, Form 19, Employment Eligibility Verification (Form -9, Rev,
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03)08;’ 13), p. 1. (“The individual may present either an original document which
establishes botﬁ employment authozization and identity, or an original document which |
establishes employment authorization and a separate original document which establishes
identity.”); 8 C.F.R. § 274a.2(b)(1)(v).

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Respondents’ employment eligibility verification of new Pasco employees oceurs

_primarily at or through offices located at 5815 Industrial Way, Pasco, Washington

99301.

On June 22,2012, WPC e;ltered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the
Department of Homeland Seéurity’é B-Verify program for the purpose of usiﬂg B-Verify
for hiﬁng at Pasco. The MOU was signed by a Pasco Human Resources Administrator
on behalf of WPC, Respondents have consistently used E-Verify for employment
eligibility verification of Pasco employees since June 2012,

As part of its obligations under the MOU, WPC agreed that it would “become familiar
with and comply with the most recent version of the E-Verify Use;‘ Manual [M-775].”
The E-Verify User Manual States that “Employers participating in E-Verify MUST
NOT: . . . Specify or request which Form [-9 documentation a newly hited employee
must use.” (emphasis in the original).

Between November 1, 2013, and October 16, 2016, Respondents hired approximately

2,002 U8, citizens (“USCs™), 794 Lawful Permanent Residents (“LPRs”) and 281 Aliens

Authorized to Work (“AAWSs”)} in the United States for the Pasco plant.
Between November 1, 2013, and October 16, 20106, at least 99.5% of the LPRs

employees Respondents hired for the PaSoo plant produced a List A document to

establish their work authority.
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Between November 1, 2013, and Qctober 16, 2016, at least 98.6% of the AAWs
employees Respondents hired for the Pasco plént produced a List A documenf to
establish their work authority.

Between November 1, 2013, and October 16, 2016, only 2.15% of the USC employees
Respondents hired for the Pasco plant produced a List A document to establish their work
authority.

On or gbout August 13, 2013, the Department of Homeland Secuﬁty alerted Respondents

~ to the high List A production rate of Respondents’ noncitizen employees,

In response to the Department of Homeland Security, Respondents stated that the high
List A production rate of noncitizen employees was attributable to their not possessing
List B and C documents.
Noncitiz_en einployees hired at the Pasco plant between J anual'y»l, 2016, and june 1,
2016, confirm that Respondents asked them o present specific employment eligibility
vetification documents because of their citizenship or immigration status:
a. Respondents told one LPR. during her onboarding process that if she weré an
LPR, she would need to present her ?elmanent Resident Card,
b. Respondents provided another LPR who was going through the onbom:ding
process with a document that stated that if a worker is an 1PR, he should present
“a Permanent Residont Card; and | |
c. Respondents agked another newly—hired. employee for the employee’s citizenship
sfatus and when the employee {dentiﬂed herself as an LPR, Respondents promptly
requested to seé her Permanent Resident Card,
From at least November 1, 2013, until at least October 16, 2016, Respondents’ sténdard

operating procedure was to request that non-citizen employees, but not U,S. citizen
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employees, produce List A documents, such as Permanent Resident Cards, for

- employment eligibility verification.

At all relevant times, Respondents allowed USC new hires to present their document of
choice from the Lists of Acceptable Documents and did not ask them to present a List A

document.

From at least November 1, 2013, until at least October 16, 2016, Respondents knowingly

treated non-citizens differently from USCs by requesting that non-citizens but not USCs

- present a List A do cument, sometimes in addition to other documents, during the Form I-

é employment eligibility verification process,

Contrary to Respondents’ claim that non-citizen employees at Pasco do not possess List
B and List C documents, multiple non-citizen employees presented valid List B and List
¢ documents for the employment eligibility verification process, but Respondents
subsequently ésked them to present a List A document,

PATTERN OR PRACTICE OF DOCUMENT ABUSE IN THE FORM 1-9
EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION PROCESSES

Complainant incorporates by reference the allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through
30 as if fully set forth herein.

Respondents’ standard operatitg procedure from November 1, 2013 to June 1, 2016 was
to request that non-1,S. citizens present a List A document for employment eligibility

verification purposes based on employees’ citizenship status,
ploy |

During this same time, USCs were not subjected to the same request for specific

documentation during the Form 1-9 employment eligibility verification process based on”

their citizenship status,
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Respondents’ differential treatment of 11011—citiz¢n employees in the employment -
eligﬂ;ility verification processes was intentiénal, discﬁminatory, and in violation of 8
U.S.C. § 1324b(a)(6).

Respondents’ actions were committed with the intent to discriminate against non-~citizens
on the basis' of their citizenslﬁp status and constitute a pattern or préctice of clooument'
abuse in violation of § U.8.C. § 1324b(a}(6).

WPC is responsible for the actions of Pasco as a joint émployer of Pasco’s employees ag
well as pursuant to the doctrine of respondeat superior.

REQUEST FOR RELIEF

- THEREFORE, Complainant respectiully requests:

Al

* That the Office of the Chief Administrative Hearing Officer assign an Administrative

Law Jlldge to preside at a hearing on this matter as soon as practicable; and

That the Administrative Law Judgé grant the following relief:

1. Order Respondents to cease and desist from the alleged iflegal practices desctibed in
the complaint and‘tal{e other appropriate measures to overcome the effects and
prevent the recurrence of the discriminatory practices; -

2. Order Respondents to pay to the United States the maximum civil penalties
authorized by law and shown to be wartanted by the facts for.each work-avthorized
individual who is found to have been subjected to the discriminatory practices alleged
in this complaint; |

3, Order Réspondénts to pay back pay to, hire,_ and/or reinstate cach work-authorized
individual who i9 found to have been subjected to the discriminatory practices alleged
in this complaint; and |

4, Order such additional relief as justice may require.



Dated: November 10,2016

Respectfully Submitted,
VANITA GUPTA

Principal Deputy Assistant Attorney General
Civil Rights Division

“ALBERTO RUISANCHEZ _

Deputy Special Counsel

C. SEBASTIAN ALOOT
Special Litigation Counsel

SILVIA DOMINGUEZ-REESE
JENNA GRAMBORT -
 Trial Attorneys
~ Office of Special Counsel for Immigr: at:on Related
Unfair Employment Practices
Civil Rights Division
U.S. Department of Justice
950 Pennsylvania Ave.,, N.W.
Washington, DC 20530
Telephone: {202) 6106-8547
Facsimile: (202) 616-5509



UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
EXECUTIVE OFFICE FOR IMMIGRATION REVIEW
OFFICE OF THE CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING OFFICER

RESPONDENTS.

~ UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ;
COMPLAINANT, | %
V. ; 8 10.8.C. § 1324b PROCEEDING
 WASHINGTON POTATO COMPANY, ; " OCAHO CASENO,
;Tsco PROCESSING, LLC | 3
%
)

" "STATEMENT PURSUANT TO 28 C.F.R. §§ 68.3, 68, 7(b)(5)

Pursuant to 28 C.F R. §§ 68.3 and 68.7(h)(5), ﬂ1e United States herby provides the

Office of the Chief Administrative Healmg Office the fullowmg service information in the
above-captioned matter:

Alberto Ruisanchez, Esq.
Deputy Special Couns_el

. Sebastian Aloot

Special Litigation Counsel

Silvia Dominguez-Reese
Jenna M., Grambort

Trial Attorneys

U.S. Department of Justice
Civil Rights Division

Office of Special Counsel for Tmmigration-Related
Unfair Employment Practices
950 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W
Washingtor, DC 20530
Phone: (202) 616-8547

Fax: (202) 616-5509

Counsels for the Complainant



Jennifer Roeper
Caroline Guest

Ogleftree, Deakins, Nash, Smoak & Stewerd, P.C,

100 North Tampa Street, Suite 3600
Tampa, Florida. 33602
Jennifer R oeper@ogleireedealdins.com

- Caroline.Guest@ogletreedeadking, com
Counsel for Respondent

Respectfully Submitted,

VANITA GUPTA
Principal Deputy Assistant Attorney General

Civil Rights Division

JUSTIN LEVTTT
Deputy Assistant Attorney General -
Civil Rights Division

BECKY MONROR

Senior Counsel to the Assistant Attorney
General

Civil Rights Division

ALBERTO RUISANCHEZ,
Deputy Special Counsel
Office of Special Counsel for
Immigration-Related

Unfair Employment Practices

C. SEBASTIAN ALOOT

~ Special Litigation Counsel

Office of Special Counsel for
Immigration-Related

;11 melomchws

SILVIA DOMINGUEZ-RERSE
JENNA GRAMBORT
Trial Attorneys

+ U.S. Department of Justice

Civil Rights Division

Office of Special Counsel for Immigration-
Related Unfair Employment Practices

950 Pennsylvania Avenue NW



Dated: November 14, 2016

* Washington, D.C. 20530

Telephone: (202) 616-8547
Facsimile: (202) 616-5509
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ;
COMPLAINANT, §
v, ; 8 U.S.C. § 1324b PROCEEDING
| ; OCAHO CASE NO.
WASHINGTON POTATO COMPANY, ) ~
;rfsco PROCESSING, LLC ;
| RESPONDENTS. ;
| ) |
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on November 14, 2016, Complainant served to Respondents its

Complaint in the above-captioned matter by facsimile and electronic mail at the addresses listed
below.

Jennifer Roeper

Caroline Guest

Ogletree, Deakins, Nash, Smoak & Steward, P.C.
100 North Tampa Street, Suite 3600

Tampa, Florida 33602

Jennifer Roeper(@ogletreedeakins.com

Caroline Guest@ogletreedeadkins.com

By: C C‘\«W

Silvia Dominguéz Reese

Jenna Grambort

Trial Attorneys:

U.S. Department of Justice

Civil Rights Division

Oflice of Special Counsel for Immigration-Related
Unfair Employment Practices

950 Pennsylvania Avenue NW
Washington, D.C. 20530

Telephone: (202) 616-8547
Facsimile: (202) 616-5509
Silvia.Dominguez-Reese@usdoj.gov

Dated: November 14, 2016



